
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT / 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
JANUARY 16,2009 

Call to Order at 2:00 P.M. 

Roll Call: Clete J. Saunier, P.E., LGWCD District Administrator, John Ryan, LGWCD 
Secretary-Treasurer, Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Town Manager (Meeting Facilitator), Dr. 
Bill Louda, Town Council Member present. 

Also Present: Lynnette R. Ballard, LGWCD Administrative Secretary, members of the public. 

Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Saunier. 

SUBJECT: AGENDA APPROVAL. Mr. Saunier requested Agenda Item #9, 40th Street 
N orthIN orth Road Canal, be moved to Item #5, at the request of an affected 
landowner present at this meeting. The Committee agreed. There were no other 
additions, deletions, or substitutions to the Agenda. 

MOTION: John Ryan made a motion to approve the Agenda, to include the rearrangement of 
Item #9, 40th Street NorthINorth Road Canal, to Item #5. Bill Louda seconded the 
motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO o. 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 2, 2009 INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING. Dr. Rosenbaum asked for approval of 
the minutes from the January 2, 2009 Intergovernmental Coordination Committee 

MOTION: 
meeting. 
Clete Saunier made a motion to approve the minutes from the January 2, 2009 
Intergovernmental Coordination Committee meeting. John Ryan seconded the 
motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

SUBJECT: 40TH STREET NORTH / NORTH ROAD CANAL: DISCUSSION. Mr. Saunier 
stated on August 16, 2005, the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District and Palm 
Beach County Water Utilities Department (PBCWUD) entered into an agreement for 
North Road Canal improvements in exchange for the PBCWUD lines that were 
constructed along North Road. The County agreed to improve the North Road Canal 
section and construct several related infrastructure improvements. During the North 

1 



Road Canal Project, it was discovered that the non-District road, 40th Street North, 
was impacted by this work. 

To resolve this matter, it is vital the LOWCD and the Town work together to resolve 
the following issues: 

A. Preserve the existing canallnaintenance easement. 

B. Preserve access for all the landowners that have used 40th Street North as a 
public access road. 

C. Preserve the ability to construct an equestrian trail along the North Road 
Canal right-of-way. 

The Town Attorney, Clete Saunier, and the PBCWUD have already been in 
discussion with each other relating to this matter. In addition, the LOWCD has 
provided communication to the landowners in the affected area relating to this matter. 
The LOWCD intends on conducting public workshops with the affected landowners 
and the Town to discuss a resolution. 

Mr. Saunier stated he has researched the easements along 40th Street North, and 
stated he has construction drawings from the Water Utilities Department that show 
the adjacent road easement is 30 feet wide. The County did a good job locating the 
easement and there are areas where the easement does not exist. He is in the process 
of identifying those areas where the easement is not shown on the County's 
construction drawings. 

John Ryan noted that Sheet 3 of 13 (referencing the Committee back-up material for 
this agenda item) shows where the physical road surface goes eastward from 140th 
Avenue North. He stated the 30-foot easement appears to have been recorded in 
some areas but not in others in an attempt to continue the road known as 40th Street 
North from E Road westward. This is possibly why there has always been confusion 
about the legal existence of 40th Street North. 

Mr. Ryan stated that, legally, there is no contiguous 40th Street North from "E" Road 
to "A" Road. 

Mr. Saunier stated there is a hiatus from "B" Road to approximately 700 feet west of 
the" C" Road / North Road intersection. The 30-foot easement then continues all the 
way through "C" Road to 300 feet east of the "C" Road intersection. This is in front 
of the Liang's property. The County conducted a rough title search of the properties 
east of "C" Road and could not find an easement that continues past "D" Road. 

2 



Dr. Louda asked if the current legal description reflects that the Liang's property runs 
all the way to the north boundary of the canal. Mr. Saunier replied in the affirmative, 
and stated he is trying to find earlier documentation that might include this easement. 
Most of the deeds state, "Subject to all easements and reservations associated with 

this property prior to (DATE) ... " Mr. Saunier stated the final outcome (at the 
workshop meetings) is that the District needs some indication of landowners' interest 
to make 40th Street North a contiguous road. An outside consultant perhaps hired by 
the title company of the affected landowners should conduct a thorough title search 
of the 40th Street North properties to determine whether an easement exists along the 
north side of North Road Canal. 

Dr. Louda asked how the County was legally able to access the North Road Canal 
right-of-way to construct the water lines. Mr. Saunier replied they condemned an 
easement overlaying the sixty-foot wide North Road Canal right-of-way. 

Mr. Saunier stated the following: The Committee needs to discuss limitations of the 
Town and District, then establish an agreement between the Town and District. The 
District could schedule a workshop meeting and invite the 40th Street North 
landowners. Representatives of the Town should be present at that workshop 
meeting to discuss whether the Town Council would be willing to establish and 
record a roadway easement, since 40th Street North is a non-District road. 

Dr. Louda asked when the County will complete the North Road Canal project. Mr. 
Saunier stated the County is anticipating final completion of the project by the end of 
January 2009. 

Dr. Louda stated that Sunsport Gardens does not want 40th Street North to extend 
west of their main entrance. 

Mr. Saunier asked the affected landowners present at the Committee meeting (Peter 
and Philomena Liang) if they have documentation that shows a 30-foot easement 
within their property outside of the District's North Road right-of-way. Mr. Liang 
replied in the negative. Mr. Ryan stated perhaps the Liang's title company could 
provide this information. 

Mr. Saunier stated the Liangs are legally landlocked, according to the District's 
documentation, unless they have documentation that indicates otherwise. Mr. 
Saunier stated, for purposes of title to be unencumbered, the landowner has to show 
that there is legal access to the property or disclose it is non-existent upon closing the 
sale of the property. Mr. Saunier encouraged the Liangs to contact their title 
company regarding this issue. 

Mr. Ryan stated it would be extremely beneficial if the Liang's title company would 
be willing to pay for the construction of a new bridge crossing over North Road 

3 



Canal in lieu of constructing a road along their property frontage from the "C" Road 
bridge crossing. Mr. Saunier agreed. 

Dr. Louda stated the Town would like to attend the District's scheduled workshop 
meeting( s) regarding 40th Street North. 

Mr. Saunier requested that Dr. Louda ask the Town Council the following: (1) To 
confirm that the Town Council supports this effort, (2) Whether the Town would 
consider maintenance responsibilities for 40th Street North if the easement is 
dedicated to the Town by the affected landowners, and (3) To consider design and 
shared construction funding for an equestrian trail. Mr. Saunier stated the road 
surface is currently in the District's North Road Canal right-of-way. The equestrian 
trail should be constructed where the road is (within the District's canal right-of-way) 
and the road should be relocated north, outside of the District's canal right-of-way. 

Mr. Saunier stated there would be a cost associated with the roadway 
relocation/equestrian trail work. Dr. Louda stated this work would be done at a later 
date. Mr. Saunier agreed, and asked for the Town's support on this issue. There 
needs to be a mutually-agreeable plan between the Town and the District to provide a 
maintained road and equestrian trail. 

Mr. Ryan noted that what the District has referred to as its "canal maintenance road" 
has historically been used as a landowner access road that has also incorrectly been 
referred to as 40th Street North. Dr. Louda agreed. 

Mr. Ryan stated the idea of having a full, contiguous road from "E" Road to "A" Road 
is expensive. A culvert crossing has traditionally been the legal remedy available to 
landowners for accessing their properties on the opposite sides of District canals. He 
stated the Liangs and their neighbors most likely feel that since they have always 
been able to access their property from the canal right-of-way and not on a recorded 
road easement, that this was an unpleasant alternative. He stated the District cannot 
legally, logically, or consistently fund the cost of a culvert crossing for those 
landowners when the District has required every other landowner in the District to 
pay for their culvert crossings to access their respective properties. He stated the 
Town could elect to pay for it, which might be the least expensive solution versus the 
Town's maintenance responsibility for a new roadway (40th Street North). 

Dr. Louda asked whether 40th Street North was included in the lane mileage 
calculations for the gas tax monies. Mr. Saunier replied in the affirmative, and 
explained only the segmented sections of the road were included where the easement 
is legally recorded. 

4 



Mr. Saunier stated every District landowner is required to pay for a bridge crossing 
over the canal to access their respective properties when that property is on the 
opposite side of a District road. 

Dr. Louda strongly encouraged the landowners (Peter and Phil Liang) to contact their 
title company to determine whether they have grounds for a claim. He requested 
feedback from the Liangs as to their progress over the next couple of weeks. The 
Liangs agreed. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: 2009 PERMIT VARIANCE SUBMITTAL TO SOUTH FLORIDA WATER 
MANAGEMENT: DISCUSSION. Mr. Saunier stated, in anticipation of the 
predicted drought conditions in December 2007, the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District submitted an Application for Variance to the South Florida Water 
Management District. The requested floor elevation of 15.50 feet above sea level 
was approved on March 13,2008. This was a one-time variance request based on the 
Emergency Order that was issued at the time the application was approved. 

In preparation of the Spring 2009 season and long-term drought solutions, discussion 
has been requested to commence regarding the Variance Application process to the 
South Florida Water Management District. 

It was suggested at the last meeting that the District inform the SFWMD that it is 
considering three options (dry hydrants, emergency wells, and creating a looped 
system for the fire hydrants on existing potable water mains) and subsequently 
provide the SFWMD with their associated costs. 

It was recommended that the Town and District further investigate costs for the 
alternatives suggested by the SFWMD. In the interim, should drought conditions 
occur, the District and Town would have a track record showing they are 
investigating alternatives for the community and are working toward a solution. Dr. 
Louda added the Town should consider the costs of installing wells by 
commissioning a groundwater study from an outsourced hydro geologist that would 
consider well size and depth to meet Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue water source 
requirements. 

Mr. Saunier reported that, to date, the District has not received any notification from 
the South Florida Water Management District that it plans to issue any type of 
reduction in the District's current allowable water use withdrawals from the C-51 
Canal. 

5 



Dr. Louda stated at the last meeting, he suggested hiring a hydro geologist to conduct 
a groundwater study, and asked for confirmation whether the Committee would like 
to proceed with this action. Mr. Saunier suggested that the Town's engineering 
consultant, Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue, and he should coordinate the 
development of the proj ect scope. The Town could then issue a request for proposals 
based upon this scope of work. The Committee agreed. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: COORDINATION BETWEEN TOWN AND LGWCD RELATING TO THE 
TOWN'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: DISCUSSION. Dr. Rosenbaum stated that on 
September 15, 2008, the District submitted a memorandum outlining comments 
relating to the Town's Comprehensive Plan. At the September 16, 2008 
Comprehensive Plan Transmittal Hearing, the Town Council agreed that once the 
Florida Department of Community Affairs Objections, Recommendations and 
Comments Report was received by the Town in November 2008, the memorandum 
would be reviewed. The planners of Calvin-Giordano and Town Staffhave reviewed 
the comments and have prepared a memorandum outlining how these comments will 
be incorporated into the Town's re-submittal of its Comprehensive Plan. 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated at the January 2, 2009 intergovernmental coordination 
committee meeting, there were corrections and additions that were agreed upon by 
the Committee. These changes were also approved by the Town Council and the 
Board of Supervisors (with some minor modifications). 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated also at the January 2, 2009 intergovernmental coordination 
committee meeting, Dr. Louda asked if anything needs to be done by the District 
regarding the October 15, 2008 letter submitted by the District's Attorney to the 
DCA. Mr. Ryan stated should the Committee's recommendations regarding Calvin
Giordano's December 31, 2008 memo response be accepted by the Board and 
Council, the District may be able to send a letter that states the District has 
coordinated with the Town to make fully acceptable amendments to the Town's 
Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Saunier stated when the Town resubmits its 
Comprehensive Plan to the DCA, the District's letter could be sent as an attachment 
to the transmittal package. The Committee agreed. 

Dr. Louda stated Matthew Lippman, Town Clerk, informed him that Item #6 has 
been revised to mimic Item # 1. 

Dr. Louda asked if the word "encumber" in Item #11 and Item #12 could be replaced 
with another word. Mr. Ryan suggested the phrase "falls within." The Committee 
agreed. 

6 



Mr. Saunier suggested the Committee review the minutes from the January 2,2009 
intergovernmental coordination committee meeting for the comments on the Town's 
Comprehensive Plan. The Committee agreed. 

Dr. Louda commented about Item #18 of Calvin-Giordano's memo. He asked 
whether the sentence should state, "The LGWCD canal system was designed to 
remove 2.63 inches of runoff in 24 hours from one square mile" or whether it should 
indicate 3.0 inches of runoff. Mr. Saunier replied that the number 2.63 should be 
replaced with 3.0. 

Mr. Saunier asked whether these revisions, agreed upon by the Committee, would be 
presented separately to the Town Council at their meeting on Tuesday, January 20, 
2009 or whether they would become part of the Town's entire Comprehensive Plan. 
Matthew Lippman stated these changes would be made separately and would be 
presented as a merged document to the Town Council. Mr. Saunier asked whether 
the Town Council would then vote to accept (or deny) those changes as part of the 
second Comprehensive Plan submittal. Mr. Lippman replied in the affirmative. 

Dr. Rosenbaum asked whether the intergovernmental coordination committee could 
begin to meet once a month rather than twice per month.. The Committee agreed to 
begin meeting once a month. Mr. Ryan added that the most challenging issues are 
currently being resolved. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: ROAD AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES AND JURISDICTION: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

DISCUSSION. Mr. Saunier stated at the last intergovernmental coordination 
committee meeting, Dr. Louda emphasized that the Town and District have shared 
road maintenance responsibilities. These shared responsibilities are necessary in 
order for the Town and the Loxahatchee Groves community to continue to receive 
shared gas tax revenues from the State. Mr. Saunier stated he would like to see the 
gas tax monies being used for both District roads and non-District roads. 

No motion was necessary. 
IT WAS THE CONSENSUS OF THE COMMITTEE THAT THE TOWN AND 
DISTRICT SHOULD SHARE THE USE OF GAS TAX REVENUE BY 
ENTERING INTO SEPARATE, PROJECT-SPECIFIC INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENTS. 

Mr. Saunier stated that, at the January 2, 2009 intergovernmental coordination 
committee meeting, Dr. Louda asked if anything needs to be done by the District 
regarding the October 15, 2008 letter submitted by the District's Attorney to the 

7 



Department of Community Affairs. Mr. Ryan stated should the Committee's 
recommendations regarding Calvin-Giordano's memo be accepted by the Board of 
Supervisors and Town Council, the District may be able to send a letter that states the 
District has coordinated with the Town to make fully acceptable amendments to the 
Town's Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Saunier stated when the Town resubmits its 
Comprehensive Plan to the DCA, the District's letter could be sent as an attachment 
to the transmittal package. The Committee agreed. 

Mr. Saunier suggested this letter be submitted by the District to the Town. The Town 
could then forward the letter to the DCA. Dr. Louda suggested the letter emphasize 
the intergovernmental cooperation between the Town and District. Mr. Ryan stated 
he and Mr. Saunier will review the letter and then forward it to the Town. The 
Committee agreed. 

SUBJECT: COORDINATION BETWEEN TOWN AND LGWCD RELATING TO ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS: DISCUSSION. The previous meeting memo dated January 2, 
2009 stated, "The Town is developing a comprehensive Master Road, Equestrian and 
Greenway trail Plan. This Plan should be completed by February 2009. The District 
has been utilizing a road petition process to determine road paving and stabilization. 
The discussion will be focusing on how the two approaches can be combined for the 
roadway planning efforts to succeed." 

Additional information from the last meeting: It was asked how it could be worked 
out to have the road improvements incorporated into some type of overall plan. It 
was suggested that the District become more involved in the Town's MREG process 
and provide more information about its road paving petition process. 

Mr. Saunier asked Dr. Louda whether he would be willing to consider asking the 
Town Council to establish a dollar amount to be given to the District in an effort to 
offset a road maintenance assessment increase in next year's budget. Dr. Louda 
stated he would bring this question before the Town Council. Dr. Louda stated the 
Town and District must use the money to benefit the landowners of Loxahatchee 
Groves. Mr. Ryan stated the Town can more directly address the landowners' 
concerns regarding this funding than the District. 

Mr. Saunier asked whether the Town's previously adopted road grading policy 
(grading in the sense of determining a road's need for improvement on a scale of 1 to 
5) will be incorporated into the Town's MREG plan or whether it would be addressed 
as a separate issue. Mr. Lippman replied it would be addressed as a separate issue. 

Mr. Saunier asked whether the purpose of the Town's road grading scale was to help 
the Town prioritize the non-District roads. Dr. Louda replied in the affirmative. 
Mr. Saunier stated he included the proposed Referendum Schedules for the four road 

8 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

segments (North A Road, South B Road, North C Road, and North D Road), which 
were approved by the Board of Supervisors at its meeting on January 12,2009. The 
North A Road landowners' meeting to hold a referendum vote will be held on 
Tuesday, February 24, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. at the District office. The South BRoad 
landowners' meeting to hold a referendum vote will be held on Thursday, March 12, 
2009 at 7:30 p.m. at the District office. The North C Road landowners' meeting to 
hold a referendum vote will be held on Wednesday, March 25,2009 at 7:30 p.m. at 
the District office. The North D Road landowners' meeting to hold a referendum 
vote will be held on Thursday, April 9, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. at the District office. Mr. 
Saunier stated there is a possibility that some or all of these referendum votes will not 
pass. If the landowners approve the OGEM stabilization road improvements, the 
District will develop a construction schedule. The District would like to have the 
design phase as part of that, and include the Town and its engineering consultant in 
this process. Mr. Saunier suggested that by doing this, it will ensure that the Town's 
MREG Plan is accommodated. 

Dr. Louda noted some of his concerns about equestrian trails, rights-of-way, gates, 
bridge culverts, etc. Mr. Saunier stated these are all issues the District would like to 
work out with the Town. 

Dr. Louda asked when proxies and ballot forms will be available to landowners. Mr. 
Ryan replied that the Board of Supervisors reviewed draft proxy forms and ballot 
forms at its last meeting on January 12,2009. They need to be revised in accordance 
with some comments made at that time and then reviewed for legal sufficiency by the 
District's legal counsel. Mr. Ryan stated the final forms should be available in the 
coming weeks. 

Dr. Louda asked whether the pertinent cost and assessment rate information would be 
provided on the proxy forms, or whether a separate information sheet would be 
provided. Mr. Saunier replied the information would be included in a separate 
format such as a notice letter to the affected landowners. This letter would be mailed 
to all affected landowners and will include the referenced information. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: FEDERAL FUNDING SOURCES: DISCUSSION. Dr. Rosenbaum read the 
Agenda Memo for this item into the record. 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated the Town and District need to be ready to move quickly should 
this federal funding become available. Historically, projects that were ready to start 
immediately-also known as "shovel ready" projects-have been the ones that received 
federal funding first. 

9 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

Mr. Ryan noted the "D" Road Canal improvement project was deferred even though 
the survey has been completed; and this proj ect is ready to begin. 

Mr. Saunier stated, for purposes of prioritizing the list, he would like to see Item #5, 
"D" Road Canal Improvements Project, moved to the top of the list as Item #1. Dr. 
Louda agreed. 

Dr. Louda asked what other canals need similar work to be done. Mr. Saunier replied 
Collecting Canal west of Sixth Court North; and "D" Road Canal. 

Dr. Louda asked about dredging the District's canals. Mr. Saunier stated the cost of 
canal dredging would be minimal, in comparison to the "D" Road Canal and 
Collecting Canal work. 

Dr. Louda stated he would like to see FDOT road improvements done to "D" Road 
between Okeechobee Boulevard and Southern Boulevard. He asked how the Town 
and District could prevent "D" Road from becoming a major cut-through road if these 
FDOT road improvements were done to "D" Road. Mr. Ryan suggested installation 
of speed tables. 

Dr. Louda asked about fire suppression, and a lengthy discussion ensued. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING LOCATION, DATE, TIME. The Committee 
scheduled the next meeting for Friday, February 13,2009 at 2:00 p.m. at the District 
office. The Committee agreed that today's meeting agenda will be continued at that 
meeting. 
No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

The meeting was adjourned by the Committee at 3:55 p.m. 

Dr. . Louda, Town Council Member 

aunier, LGWCD District Administrator 

10 


